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Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited

Director, Brian Burkholder
KY -1104
309
P_.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands
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2023 12
4,388,287.50 51.5
949,387.00 11.2
701,168.40 8.2
525,088.29 6.2
500,905.00 5.9
398,900.73 4.7
330,091.86 3.9
297,681.03 3.5
421,217.84 4.9
8,512,727.65
( 825 ) 100.0
2023 12

VOLKSWAGEN FIN SERV

AUST /AUD/ REGD MTN 2.4000 | 2024/8/28 | 730,000 | 99.78 | 728,388.88 | 98.27 | 717,347.60 8.4

WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

4.7500 | 2024/8/27 | 600,000 | 102.27 | 613,642.38 | 99.84 | 599,058.58 7.1
/AUD/ REGD MTN

BPCE SA /AUD/ REGD REG
2.0000 | 2025/6/5 | 550,000 | 95.03 | 522,658.42 | 95.47 | 525,088.29 6.2

S MTN

SUMITOMO MITSUI FINL

GRP /AUD/ REGD V/R REG 4.1912 | 2024/10/16 | 500,000 | 100.06 | 500,293.35 | 100.18 | 500,905.00 5.9
S EMTN

WESTPAC BANKING CORP

/AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 5.2680 | 2024/8/16 | 400,000 | 100.29 | 401,178.03 | 100.28 | 401,115.95 4.7
MTN

BANK OF MONTREAL /AUD/

5.1542 | 2024/7/17 | 400,000 | 100.36 | 401,450.82 | 100.17 | 400,682.55 4.7
REGD V/R MTN

AUST & NZ BANKING GROUP
/AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 5.5142 | 2024/2/8 | 400,000 | 100.06 | 400,255.70 | 100.08 | 400,301.30 4.7
MTN

NATWEST MARKETS PLC

5.0546 | 2025/8/12 | 400,000 | 99.26 | 397,043.91 | 99.73 | 398,900.73 4.7
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

JAUD/ REGD MTN 2.3500 | 2025/2/25 | 400,000 | 97.9 391,581.06 | 97.53 | 390,138.61 4.6
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GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC
10 | /AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 5.8997 | 2024/5/2 | 350,000 | 100.34 | 351,196.65 | 100.09 | 350,328.42 | 4.1
MTN
UBS AG AUSTRALIA /AUD/
11 1.2000 | 2025/7/30 | 350,000 | 94.7 | 331,454.45 | 94.31 | 330,091.86 | 3.9
REGD REG S SER ..
TORONTO-DOMINION BANK
12 5.1383 | 2024/7/10 | 300,000 | 100.33 | 300,996.02 | 100.16 | 300,485.85 | 3.5
/AUD/ REGD V/R
g3 [COMONIEALTH BANKCAUST 4.2000 | 2025/8/18 | 300,000 | 99.47 | 298,420.79 | 99.51 | 298,535.47 | 3.5
/AUD/ REGD MTN ) ’ ) e ) e )
INTER-AMERICAN DEVEL BK
14 1.9500 | 2024/4/23 | 300,000 | 99.18 | 297,526.85 | 99.23 | 297,681.03 | 3.5
/AUD/ REGD MTN
MACQUARIE BANK LTD 2024/8/ ) 2 | 2
15 | ,0Ub/ REGD MTN 1.7500 | 2024/8/7 | 300,000 | 98.37 | 295,114.74 | 98.29 | 294,859.10 [ 3.5
BENDIGO AND ADELAIDE BK 202 ) X
16 | ,0Ub/ REGD 1.7000 | 2024/9/6 | 300,000 | 98.06 | 294,171.50 | 97.86 | 293,576.19 | 3.4
MACQUARIE BANK LTD
17 | /AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 5.1672| 2024/8/7 | 250,000 | 100.1 | 250,254.26 | 100.17 | 250,429.60 | 2.9
MTN
AUST & NZ BANKING GROUP s0255/12 | 2 2 | 250 702 ) )
18 | ,\un/ REGD MTN 4.0500 | 2025/5/1 50,000 | 100.28 | 250,702.79 | 99.38 | 248,456.19 -9
SUNCORP-METWAY LTD
19 | /2 0b/ REGD MTN 1.8500 | 2024/7/30 | 250,000 | 100.53 | 251,326.15 | 98.28 | 245,691.54 | 2.9
MERCEDES-BENZ AUSTRALIA .
20 | 20/ REGD REG S EMTN 5.0000 | 2026/9/26 | 200,000 | 99.04 | 198,087.26 | 100.95 [ 201,891.59 | 2.4
gy [ESTPAC BANKING CORP 4.9000 | 2025/11/11 | 200,000 | 101.31 | 202,610.08 | 100.64 | 201,277.37 | 2.4
/AUD/ REGD MTN ) ’ ) e ) e )
pp |IERCEDES-BENZ AUSTRALIA 1.0000 | 2024/3/15 | 200,000 | 99.98 | 199,968.56 | 99.24 | 198,474.31 | 2.3
/AUD/ REGD REG S EMTN ) ’ : R ) S )
TOYOTA FINANCE
23 | AUSTRALIA /AUD/ REGD 2.9300 | 2025/3/21 | 150,000 | 97.55 | 146,332.18 | 97.8 | 146,704.14 | 1.7
MTN
24 [ IESTPAC BANKING CORP 3.0000 | 2024/4/24 | 100,000 | 99.85 | 99,852.74 | 99.49 | 99,488.54 1.2
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN ) ’ : e ) S )
2023 12
2023 12
2023 2023 12
10,650,354.28 1,032,445,344 1.0043 97
2021
8,855,369.76 858,439,545 0.9883 96
2022
9,029,108.84 875,281,811 1.0195 99
2023
2023 9,340,120.05 905,431,238 1.0004 97
2023 9,313,911.68 902,890,598 1.0006 97
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2023 9,373,581.00 908,674,942 1.0067 98
2023 9,397,873.70 911,029,876 1.0093 98
2023 9,388,774.02 910,147,753 1.0098 8
2023 9,102,833.38 882,428,668 1.0098 98
2023 9,046,521.20 876,969,765 1.0146 98
2023 9,029,108.84 875,281,811 1.0195 99
2023 8,968,213.83 869,378,649 1.0219 99
2023 10 8,774,157.09 850,566,788 1.0233 99
2023 11 8,549,460.21 828,784,673 1.0286 100
2023 12 8,512,727.65 825,223,818 1.0347 100

2023 12

2020 24 2021 0-4

2021 2022 -0

2022 2023 3-2

100x +
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100x

2020

(L) (R
1.060 1,500
1,040 1,200
1.020 900
1.000 - =t 600
0.980 300
0.950 : . - . P

2020/9/24 2021/5/24 2022/1/24 2022/9/24 2023/5/24 2023/12/29
U () —— BRENEN)  — A )

BEONETHEROFHERBELES. EEHOARSER:BERENAGL BUEY,

6%
4.
Fi 0
-2% | -0.7
-4% |
-6%
20204 20215 202255 0238
(202038248~ (202118018~ (202251818~ (20231818~
202081 23FB) 20211 2AFB) H22E12HER) 2023F12Rx8)
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2020 o 13,241,074.00 2,636,036.00 10,605,038.00
2021 (11,341,074.00) (2,636,036.00) (8,705,038.00)
2021 1,383,002.00 2,995,624.00 8,992,416.00

(1,383,002.00) (2,995,624.00) (7,092,416.00)
2022
2022 783,000.00 919,024.00 8,856,392.00
2023 (783,000.00) (919,024.00) (6,956,392.00)
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2025 29
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
AUD AUD
2.2 5

6 8,607,771 834,437 8,448,241 818,972
2.1 369,096 35,780 603,517 58,505
2.11 42,761 4,145 40,157 3,893
2.5 26,693 2,588 15,636 1,516

2.4 9 1
2.10 3 151,161 14,654
97,298 9,432 84,283 8,170
9,143,628 886,383 9,342,995 905,710
37,454 3,631 19,422 1,883
7.1D 29,604 2,870 36,781 3,566
7.2D 15,679 1,520 1,751 170
2.8 2.10 3 12,735 1,235 1,383 134
7.1E 10,492 1,017 5,952 577
7.1C 4,436 430 1,950 189
7.28 1,844 179 1,780 173
7.1B 1,077 104 2,402 233
7.2F 154 15 149 14
7.2E 78 8 165 16
2.4 382,364 37,066
7.1A 1,690 164
113,553 11,008 455,789 44,184
9,030,075 875,375 8,887,206 861,526
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
AUD AUD
FVTPL o
2.11 275,459 26,703 104,724 10,152
2.11 6 (3.,566) (346) (24,487) (2,374)
/ 2.2
2.11 6 96,329 9,338 (210,253) (20,382)
2.6 209 20 142 14
2.6 9 1
/ 368,440 35,717 (129,874) (12,590)
7.1A 62,889 6,096 58,160 5,638
7.1D 45,665 4,427 48,767 4,727
28,364 2,750 36,308 3,520
7.2D 27,481 2,664 16,539 1,603
7.1E 27,481 2,664 16,539 1,603
22,984 2,228 24,865 2,410
7.18 13,567 1,315 13,568 1,315
7.28 10,992 1,066 12,154 1,178
7.1C 8,921 865 8,920 865
7.2E 916 89 1,013 98
7.0 916 89 1,013 98
250,176 24,252 237,846 23,057
25 (167,734) (16,260)  (171,617) (16,637)
285,998 27,725  (196,103) (19,010)
2.12 (132) 13)
285,866 27,712 (196,103) (19,010)
1
FVTPL
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2023 8 31
AUD
2021 8 31 10,673,824 1,034,720
1,378,701 133,651
2.8 (2,969,216) (287,836)
(196,103) (19,010)
2022 8 31 8,887,206 861,526
777,540 75,375
2.8 (920,537) (89,237)
285,866 27,712
2023 8 31 9,030,075 875,375
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
AUD AUD
285,866 27,712 (196,103)  (19,010)
(3,530,655)  (342,262) (3.132,593)  (303,674)
3,419,319 331,469 4,428,536 429,302
(209) (20) (142) 14)
3,566 346 24,487 2,374
/ (96,329) (9,338) 210,253 20,382
(32,257) 3,127 (320) 3D
77,035 7,468 120,186 11,651
(©)] @

(2,604) (252) 12,991 1,259
(11,057) (1,072) 24,765 2,401
(13,015) (1,262) 23,248 2,254
(382,364)  (37,066) 382,364 37,066
1 28,776 2,790 31,387 3,043

(253,937) (24,617) 1,929,059 187,003

928,701 90,028 1,233,712 119,59
(909,185)  (88,136) (2,967,833)  (287,702)

19,516 1,892 (1,734,121)  (168,106)
(234,421)  (22,725) 194,938 18,897
2.1 603,517 58,505 408,579 39,608
2.1 369,096 35,780 603,517 58,505
272,855 26,451 117,715 11,411

132) 13)
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2023 8 31
1.
2013 12 2
I
2020 8 28
2020 9 24 2025 8 29
100
2021 2014 1 22
KY1-9005 1 One Nexus Way, Camana
Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
2021 12 6 Ccsc
100
2022 11 CsC
2021 2 15
2021 2 3
2021 1 19
2021 1 18
2021 1 18
AUD $
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2023 8 31
2023 3 19  UBS AG UBS FINMA
AG
2023 6 12 UBS AG AG
2023 11 30
2.
IASB
IFRS IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL FVOCI IFRS 9
FVTPL
FVTPL
i
i SPPI

i SPPI
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ii)

FVTPL

SPPI

2023 8 31
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ECL FVOCI
ECL
- FVTPL
- 12
ECL
2023 8 31
2023 8 31
2022 9 1
2.1
3
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
$ 957  $ 202
368,139 603,315
$ 369,096 $ 603,517
2.2
A
" FVTPL
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2023 8 31 - 2023 8 31 -

$ 8,607,771 $ 8,680,923
2022 8 31 - 2022 8 31 -
$ 8,448,241 $ 8,617,722
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E
2.3
2023 8
31 2022 8 31
24
25
0.90 TER
2 TER TER

2 TER

0.50 0.40%

0.50 0.75 0.50%
2023 8 31

0.75 1.00 0.60%

1.00 1.25 0.70%

1.25 0.90%

@)

TER
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(b)

(c) TER

(d) (@) (b)
(e) TER

TER

2.6

2.7

2.8
IAS 32

2023 8 31
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2023 8 31 2022 8 31

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12
2063 12 2

1 2023 8 31 2022 8 31
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2023 8 31
2023 2022
$ 132 $
IAS 12
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
3.
1
1 1 1
7
7
2023 8 31 1
1
$ 9,030,075 8,856,392 $ 1.0196
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2022 8 31 1

$ 8,887,206 8,992,416 $ 0.9883

71/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 8 31

2023 8 31 70.80 21.45
7.16  0.59

2022 8 31 68.17  21.13

947 0.88 0.35

2023 8 31

2022 8 31

$

777,540

$

(920,537)

$

1,378,701

$

(2,969,216)

72/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2022 8 31 2023 8 31
8,992,416 783,000 (919,024) 8,856,392
2021 8 31 2022 8 31
10,605,038 1,383,002 (2,995,624) 8,992,416
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5.1
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ 6,359,853 $ 2,247,918 $ - $ - $ 8,607,771
369,096 - - - 369,096
- - - 42,761 42,761
- - - 26,693 26,693
- - 9 9
- - 97,298 97,298
$ 6,728,949 $ 2,247,918 $ - $ 166,761 $ 9,143,628
2023 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ - $ - $ - $ 37454 $ 37,454
- - - 29,604 29,604
- - - 15,679 15,679
- - - 12,735 12,735
- - - 10,492 10,492
- - - 4,436 4,436
- - - 1,844 1,844
- - - 1,077 1,077
- - - 154 154
- - - 78 78
- - - 113,553 113,553
$ 6,728,949 $ 2,247,918 $ - $ 53,208 $ $9,030,075
2022 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ 2,809,905 $ 5,638,336 $ - $ - $ 8,448,241
603,517 - - - 603,517
- - 151,161 151,161
- - 40,157 40,157
- - 15,636 15,636
) . 84,283 84,283
$ 3,413,422 $ 5,638,336 $ - $ 291,237 $ 9,342,995
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2023 8 31
2022 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ - $ . $ - $ 382,364 $ 382,364
- - - 36,781 36,781
- - - 19,422 19,422
- - - 5,952 5,952
- - - 2,402 2,402
- - - 1,950 1,950
- - - 1,780 1,780
- - - 1,751 1,751
- - - 1,690 1,690
- - - 1,383 1,383
- - - 165 165
- - - 149 149
] - - 455,789 455,789
$ 3,413,422 $ 5,638,336 $ - $ (164,552) $ 8,887,206
2023 8 31 2022 8 31 50
1
41,193 39,224
ili
2023 8 31
t
$ 1,406,708 15.6%
6,905,592 76.4%
295,471 3.3%
$ 8,607,771 95.3%
8,607,771 95.3%
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2023 8 31
%
$ 4,917,528 54.4%
902,597 10.0%
500,680 5.5%
295,471 3.3%
324,677 3.6%
1,666,818 18.5%
8,607,771 95.3%
8,607,771 95.3%
2022 8 31
$ 1,095,756 12.4%
7,030,402 79.1%
322,083 3.6%
$ 8,448,241 95.1%
$ 8,448,241 95.1%
$ 2,464,595 27.8%
1,145,539 12.9%
200,461 2.3%
309,489 3.5%
300,947 3.4%
322,083 3.6%
400,728 4.5%
1,630,457 18.3%
1,673,942 18.8%
8,448,241 95.1%
8,448,241 95.1%
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2023 8 31 2022 8 31 1

86,078 84,482 1
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
A 2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31
Aaa 3.3%
Aa3 28.3%
Al 34.1%
A2 10.5%
A3 19.1%
95.3%
* S&P
2022 8 31
Aaa 3.6%
Aa3 12.7%
Al 24.0%
A2 11.2%
A3 27.6%
Baal 6.8%
Baa2 9.2%
95.1%
* S&P
C
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 1 13
37,454 - 37,454
29,604 - 29,604
15,679 - 15,679
12,735 - 12,735
10,492 - 10,492
4,436 - 4,436
1,844 - 1,844
1,077 - 1,077
154 - 154
78 - 78
$ 113,553 $ - $ 113,553
2022 8 31 1 13
$ 382,364 $ - $ 382,364
36,781 - 36,781
19,422 - 19,422
5,952 - 5,952
2,402 - 2,402
1,950 - 1,950
1,780 - 1,780
1,751 - 1,751
1,690 - 1,690
1,383 - 1,383
165 - 165
149 - 149
$ 455,789 $ - $ 455,789
15
D
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2023 8 31

5.2

2023 8 31 2022 8 31
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GDP
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2023 8 31
G
H
2025 8 29
5.3
IFRS 13
3
u 1
n 2 1
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2023 8 31
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31
1 2 3
$ - $ 8,607,771 $ - $ 8,607,771
- $ 8,607,771 $ - $ 8,607,771
2022 8 31
2022 8 31
1 2 3
- $ 8448241 $ - $ 8,448,241
$ - $ 8,448,241 $ - $ 8,448,241
2023 8 31 2022 8 31 1 2 3
2
2
3 2023 8 31 2022
8 31 3
i 2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2
i
6.
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2023 8 31 2022 8 31
$ (3,357) $ (24,345)

(209) (142)
$ (3,566) $ (24,487)
$ 96,329 $ (210,253)
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2023 8 31
7.
7.1
A
3,750 5 0.07 5
0.06 10 0.05 1 2023 8 31
2022 8 31 2023 8 31 2022 8 31
B
0.03
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
Cc
0.01 1 10
2023 8 31 2022 8 31 2023 8 31
2022 8 31
D
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
(E)
0.30
2
2
)
0.50 0.05%
0.50 0.75 0.10%
0.75 1.00 0.15%
1.00 1.25 0.20%
1.25 0.30%
2023 8 31
2022 8 31 2023 8 31 2022
8 31

7.2
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2023 8 31
A
10,000
B
0.12
2023 8 31 2022 8 31 2023
8 31 2022 8 31
TER
TER TER
Cc
5,000
D
0.30%
2
2
0.50 0.05%
0.50 0.75 0.10%
0.75 1.00 0.15%
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1.00 1.25 0.20%

1.25 0.30%
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2023 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31 2023 8
31 2022 8 31
E
0.01%
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
F
0.01
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
8.
10
2023 8 31 2022 8 31
9.
2023 11 30 2023 9
1 2023 11 30 30,312 587,808
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Financial Position
August 31, 2023

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Assels August 31, 2023 August 31, 2022
Financial assets ai fair value through profit or loss (Mote 2.2, 5, 6) 3 8,607,771 -] B,448 241
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 269,026 803,517
Receivables for:
Interest {Mote 2.11) 42,761 40,157
Expense reimbursement (Mote 2.5) 26,693 15,636
Securities soid (Note 2.4) a -
Units isswed (Note 2,10, 3) - 151,181
Qther assels 97,298 84,283
Total assels &.143,628 0,342,995
Liabilities
Payables for;
Printing fees 37,454 19,422
Professional fees (Note 7.10) 29,604 36,781
Investment management fees (Mote 7.20) 15,679 1,751
Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 2.10, 3) 12,735 1,383
Distribution fees (Note 7.1E) 10,4582 5052
Transfer agent fees (Note 7.1C) 4,436 1,950
Fee agent fees (Note 7.28) 1,844 1,780
Custody fees (Mote 7.1B) 1,077 2402
Agent member company fees (Nole 7.2F) 154 148
Manager support service pravider fees (Note 7.2E) [ 165
Securities purchased (Mote 2.4) - 382,364
Administrator fees (Note T_1A) — 1,650
Liabilities {excluding equity) 113,553 455,780
Equity (baing net assels altributable to the holders of units) 3 9,030,075 g B.BB7.206

The accompanying noles are an integral pant of these financial statements.
i

94/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Income August 31, 2023 August 31, 2022
Mt incomel(loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL!Y
Interest Income (Mote 2.11) - 275,459 § 104,724
MNet realized (loss) on inancial assets and liabilies at fair value
through profit or loss (Mote 2.11,6) (3,566) (24,487}

Net change in unrealized appreciation/{depreciation) on financial
assets and liabiities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2,

211, 8) 295,329 {210,253)
Met realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Mote 2.6) 209 142
Met change in unrealized appreciation on foreign curmency
franslations (Note 2.6) ) -
Total incomel{loss) 368,440 {128,874}
Expianses
Administrator fees (Mole T.1A) 52889 58,160
Professional fees {Note 7.1D) 45,665 48,767
Crganzalion expenses 28,364 36,308
Investment management fees (Note 7.20) 27481 16,539
Distribution fees (Note T.1E) 27481 16,539
Printing fees 22,984 24,865
Custody fees (Mole 7.1B) 13,567 13,568
Fee agent fees (Mote T.28) 10,992 12,154
Transfer agent fees (Note 7.1C) 8921 8,920
Manager support service provider fees (Mole 7.2E) 916 1.013
Agent member company fees (Nole T.2F) 916 1.013
Total expenses 250176 237,846
Expense reimbursement {Note 2.5) {167,734} {171.817)
Operating profit{loss) 285,008 (196,103)
Withhelding tax expenses (Mole 2.12) (132) -
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net
assets atiributable to the holders of units from operations) $ 285 BEG 5 {196,103)

I*'This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVYTPL) including realized and
unrealized gains/({losses) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss, realized gain on foreign currency and
interast income.

The accompanying noles are an integral pant of these financial statements.
2
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

At August 31, 2021 5 10673824
Izsue of units (Note 3) 1,378,701
Repurchases of unils (Mate 2.8, 3) (2,969,216)
Total comprehensive (loss) (being (decrease) in net assets

attributable to the helders of units from operations) (196,103}
At August 31, 2022 g 8 887 206
Izsue of units (Note 3) TT7.540
Repurchases of units (Mote 2.8, 3) (920,537)
Total comprehensive income (baing increase in net assels

attributable to the holders of units from operations) 285, 856
At August 31, 2023 & 9,030,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Caszh flows froam operating activities: August 31, 2023 August 31, 2022
Tatal comprehensive incomel(loss) (being increase/{decrease) in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ 285,866 - {196,103)

Adjustiments to reconcile comprehensive incomed(loss) (being
increasel{decrease) in net assets attributable 1o the holders of units
from operations) to cash provided by/{used in) aperating activities:

Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {3,530,655) (3,132 ,593)
Proceads from disposition of financial assets al fair value through
profit or loss 3419319 4,428,536
Met {payments) from settlement of forward contracts {209) (142}
Met realized loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 3,566 24 487
Met change in unrealized (appreciationfdepreciation on financial
assats and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (96,329) 210.253
Accretion of investments in securities (32,257) (320)
Amortization of investments in securities 77035 120,186
{increase) in receivables for securities sold (9 -
{Increase)'decrease in receivables for interest (2.604) 12,991
{Increaselidecrease in receivables for expense reimbursement {11,057) 24,765
{Increase)decrease in other assats {13,015} 23.248
{Decrease)increase in payables for securities purchased [382,364) 382364
Increase in other payables'" 28,776 31.387
Net cash (used in)provided by operating activities [253,937) 1,929,059

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units

issued 28,701 1,233,712

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units

repurchased (909,185) (2.967.833)
Met cash provided by/{used in) financing activities 19.516 (1.734.121)
Met (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents [234,421) 184,935
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year (Note 2.1) 803,517 408,579
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2.1} 3 369,056 5 603,517

Supplemantary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 3 272 B55 5 117,718
Withhobding fax % {132) 5 -

" Other payables comprise of pavables for professional fees. admanistrator fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, transfer agent feas,
distribution fees, printing fees, investiment management fees, agent member company fees and manager support service provider fees
as disciosed in the Stalement of Financial Position.

The accompanying noles are an integral pant of these financial statements.
4

97/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023

(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)
1. ORGANIZATION

AUD Short Term Bond Fund (the “Seres Trust™) is a Seres Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust {Cayman) Il {the
“Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman
Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 28, 2020 and
executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustea”), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Istands. The Series Trust commenced operations on September 24, 2020 and will conlinue until the Final Repurchase
Day being the eadiest practicable repurchase day being the eadier of August 29, 2025 or any subsequent date as
mutually agreed by the Trustee and the Manager, and the earliest praclicable repurchase day following the cccurrence of
any of the following; the net asset value ("Met Asset VWalue") being the value of ils total assets minus its liabilities
including accrued fees and expenses) on any Valuation Day is in respect of AUD Class Units AUD 1,000,000 or less and
on that valuation day or thereafier the Manager determines that all of the units of such class of units should be
compulsorily repurchased by giving notica to all unitholders, or the Trustes and the Manager agree that all of the units of
such class of units should be compulsorily repurchased, each a "Compulsory Repurchase Event™.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registerad under the
Mutual Funds Act (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay,. Grand Cayman
KY1-9005, Cayman |slands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company ("CSC") announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of which the Trustee is a wholly
owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

The manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Manager”).

The Adminisirator, Custedian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hariman & Co.
(the “Administrator”, “Custodian” and “Transfer Agent”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent”).
Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company”).
The Investmeant Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd. (the “Investment Manager”).

The Manager Support Service Provider of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management Co. Lid. (the “Manager Support
Service Provider™),

Effective February 15, 2021, the Manager authorized Tokal Tokyo Securities Co., Lid. to act as a distributor of the units
in Japan, Effective February 3, 2021, the Manager authorized Chibagin Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor of the
units in Japan. Effective January 19, 2021, the Manager authorized Kyushu FG Securities, Inc. to act as a distributor of
the units in Japan. Effective January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Toyo Securities Co., Lid. to act as a distributor of
the units in Japan. Prior to January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Marusan Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor
of the units in Japan. The Manager may appoint further distributors of the Units in the future (each a "Distributor™ and
collectively the “Distributors”).

The Series Trust is denominated in Australian Dollar ("AUD" or “$") and AUD Class Units are also denominated in
Australian Dollar.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to maintain a high degree of liquidity while providing stable income by
investing in Australian Dollar denominated high quality fixed and floating rate debt instruments (the “Australian Bonds”
and those securities selected by the Investment Manager being the "Selected Bonds™). The Series Trust may also hold
AUD cash and AUD-denominated money market securities (including but not limited to commercial paper, cerificates of
deposit and government bills) (the “Short-Term Instruments”, togather with the ALD cash and Selected Bonds being the
"Partfolio”™).

The Investiment Manager shall have day-to-day investmant decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over
the Portfolio.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023

{Expressed in Australian Dollars)

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG ("UBS") agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suisse”) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Depariment of Finance, the Swiss Mational Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG complated the take over of Cradit Suisse Group AG,

The Seres Trust has no exposure related to investments in financial assets with Credit Suisse International,
The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on November 30, 2023,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the pericds presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process
of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies, Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Mote 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities [Amendments fo IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) (2012) (the
Amendments). Management conclueded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investmant entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of
financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the fellowing conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets o collect contraciual cash flows; and,

i} Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of principal
and interest (SPP1).

A financial asset is measurad at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i} Its contractual terms do not give rise o cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding:

ii) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either o collect contractual cash flows, or to both
collect contractual cash fiows and sell;

ili} AL initial recognition, it is irevecably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing 2o eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assels or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPFPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing
or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series
Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features,

- prepayment and extension features;
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

- terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features); and
- featuras thal modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
The Series Trust has determined that it has Iwo business models:
- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalenis, olher asseis, receivables for

interest, expense reimbursement, securilies sold and units issued. These financial assets are held to collect
contractual cash flow.

- Other business maodel: this includes financial assels at fair value through profit or loss. These financial assets
are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment sirategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strateqy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a parlicular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assels held within that business
model) and how those nisks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: €.g9. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial asseis in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity,

Transfers of financial assels 1o third parfies in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
far this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for professional fees, administrator fees, custody fees, fee
agent fees, transfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member company fees, manager
support service provider fees, printing fees, units repurchased and securities purchased.

Impairment of financial assets

The “expected credit loss” (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt invesiment at
FVOCI, but nat to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a matenal impact on the Series Trust's financial
aszels because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply 1o such
instruments.,

- The financial assets at amortized cost are shorl-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality andfor highly
collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expecltad to be small.

MNew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended August 31, 2023:
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual perieds beginning after September 1,
2022 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended

standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial
statements.

100/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
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2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with oniginal maturity of three months or less to
be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

At August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

August 31, 2023 August 31, 2022
] 5 202

Cash 957
Tima deposit 388,139 803,315
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position 3 369,006 3 603,517

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(&) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
= Mandatorily at FYTPL: Investmenis in debt securities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

August 31, 2023 - August 31, 2023 -
Fair Value Cost
Invesiments in debl securities % 860771 $ B 680,923
August 31, 2022 - August 31, 2022 -
Fair Value Cost
Investmants in debt securities : 5 448,241 5 B,B17T 722

Financial assels at amortized cost:

® (Cash and cash equivalents, other assets, receivables for interest, expense reimbursement, securities sold and
units issued.

Financial liabilities at amodized cost:

=  Other liabilities: payables for printing fees, professional fees, administrator fees, custody fees, fee agent fees,
transfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member company fees and manager
support service provider fees, unils repurchased and securities purchased,

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assels and liabilities on the date il becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of
the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investmenis are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the
Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investmenl. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when ils contractual obligations are discharged, canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assels and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaction costs
recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the financial assetls and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ calegory are presanted in the Statermant of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of investiments are calculated
using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried al amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered lo approximate fair value due to the
shor-term or immediate nature of these instrumants.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be

:]
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(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for which
market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance with
procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in unrealized gains or lossas are
reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E} Investments in debt securities

The fair value is based on quoted markel prices on a recognized exchange or sourced from a reputable
brokerfcounterparty, in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, al the Statement of Financial Position date without
any deduction for estimatad future selling costs.

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to setfle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and sefttle the liability simultaneously. As at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, all financial assets
and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore
have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position,

2.4 Receivables for Securities Sold and Payables for Securities Purchased

Receivables for secunfies sold and payables for securiies purchased represent frading transactions thal have been
contracted for but not yet settied on the Stalemeant of Financial Position date, These amounts are recognized initially and
subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for securities sold,
A provision for impairmeant is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will not be able to collect
all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered indicators that the amount of
recaivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The maximum fees, costs and expenses (the "Capped Expenses”) that may be deducted from the assets of the Seres
Trust attributable to the AUD Class Units is 0.90% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the "TER Cap”).

The Investment Manager shall instruct the Administrator on a monthly basis to adjust the TER Cap by monitoring the
yield of the 2-Year Australian Government Bond. The TER Cap fee table is as follows:

2-year Australian Government Bond Yields | TER Cap

Less than or equal to 0.50% 0.40%

Above 0.50% and less than or equal 10 0.75% | 0.50%

Above 0.75% and less than or equal to 1.00% | 0.60%

Abowe 1.00% and less than or equal lo 1.25% | 0.70%

Abowe 1.26% 0.90%

Any Capped Expenses of the Series Trust attributable to the AUD Class Units above the TER Cap shall be borne by the
Investment Manager.
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Capped Expanses:

(a) include, without limitation, the Operational Costs Fees, the Investment Manager Fees, Audit Fees, Formation
Expenses. Distribution Fees, Administration Fees, Manager Support Service Provider Fees, Custody Fees,
Agent Member Company Fees, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the Audit Fees and
expenses, annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and other similar offering documents and
the cosls relating to the preparation, printing. transiation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating
to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anti-money
laundering compliance and monitoring, expenses related fo the economic substance of the Series Trust,
expenses related to the termination or the liguidation of the Seres Trust, any costs and other charges and
expenses listed in the Offering Memorandum (to the extent such costs and expenses do not constitute the
Ordinary Costs) but excluding litigation and indemnification expenses and any expenses that the Manager
determines to be extracrdinary expenses that have not been incumed in the ordinary course of business
("Extraordinary Expenses”) and any broker fees or commissions (if any) and any issue or transfer taxes
chargeable in conneclion with any securilies lransactions ("Broker Expenses®), or thal, in the Manager's
determination, relate to the ongoing operation of the Series Trusl; and

(b} exclude the Ordinary Costs, Extraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and any other extraordinary or
unanticipated fees, costs, expenses or liabilities that, in the Manager's determination, would not usually oocur,

(c) Extracrdinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and Miscellaneous Expenses shall fall outside of the TER Cap and
shall be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, oul of the assels of the Series Trust

(d) In the event that a fee, cost or expense does not fall into either paragraph {a) ar (b) above it shall be deemed
not 1o be a Capped Expense

(e} The TER Cap is dependent on the Investiment Manager fulfilling its obligation to pay the Investment Manager
Expenses. In circumstances where the Investment Manager were to defaull on such obligation, it may not be
possible to maintain the TER Cap which would result in additional fees, cosls and expenses being payable out
of the assets of the Series Trust.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

{A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in Australian Dollars. The Trustee
considers the Australian Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
fransactions, events and condiions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars,
which is the Series Trust's functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Australian Dollar amounts at the date
of valualion. Purchases and sales of financial assels and liabilities, issue and repurchase of unils and income and
expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Australian Dollar amounts on the respective dates of
such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates
on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on financial
assefs and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

2.7 Distributions
The eurrent distribution policy of the Seres Trust, in respect of AUD Class Unils, is notl to make distributions to

Unitholders. Consequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realized capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in
tha Nat Asset Value of the applicable class of Units.

10
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2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Senes Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Seres Trusl classifies its pullable
insfruments as liabilities in accordance with |AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Fresenfation. The amendment
requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where
cartain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

®=  The puttable instruments must enfitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assels;
®*  The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

=  There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation on
the issuer to repurchase; and

*  The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the profit
or logs of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at August 31, 2023 and August 31,
2022

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are camed al the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased al prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit al the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unil is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of cutstanding
units. Refer to Mote 3 for further discussion.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Seres Trust, enter into certain confracts thal contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, However, the Seres
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these conitracts and expects the risk of loss to be remole.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is camried at lhe issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is cammed at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date.

2.11 Net income/f{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

MNet income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gainfloss on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest income. Met realized gain or loss from financial instruments at
FVTPL is calculated using the first in, first cut method, Net realized gain or loss on financial assels and liabilities at
FVTPL represents the difference betwean the cost of the financial instrumeants and its settlemeant price of the sale trade.

MNet change in unrealized (depreciation)appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference
between the carmying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note & for
further details.

Interest income and expense (where relevant) is calculated using the effective interest method and recorded on an
accrual basis. Interest income and expense presentad in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interast on
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL.

2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local income, profits
and capital gains until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withhelding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

11
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Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. For the years ended
August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, taxes were comprised of the following balance:

2023 2022
Withholding Taxes on Interests g 132 5 -

The Series Trust invests in securities domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign
countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the Series
Trust. These capital gaing taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes
may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker on a "withholding” basis.

In accordance with 145 12 fncome Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The
tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd. There is sometimes uncertainty
about the way enacted tax law is applied 1o offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ulimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities
managaement considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the
likefihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability 1o
record for any unrecegnized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager's
best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earmed by
the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a refrospective basis, and could result in
a loss to the Series Trust.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust by
the total number of units of the Seres Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the
Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Australian Dollars,

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unil. The initial purchase price of units is AUD 1 per unit. All
unitholders must complete a subscription application.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date al the
relevant subscription price. All payments in respect of AUD Class Units must be made in Australian Dollar. The Trustee
may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

Investors wishing to subscribe for Units of a class of Units on a Dealing Day must send a completed Application Form to
the Administrator by no later than 7:00 p.m., (Tokyo time) on the last day of the Initial Offer Period or 7,00 p.m, (Tokyo
fime) on the relevant Dealing Day, respactively, or such other time or times on such day or days as the Manager may, in
its sole discretion, determine.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of August 31, 2023 were as follows:

Meat Asset Value per
Clasges of units Total net agsels Units outstanding unit
AUD Class Units 3 9,030,075 8856392 § 1.0196

The total net assets, units oulstanding and nel assets value per unit as of August 31, 2022 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assels Units outstanding unit

ALID Class Units 5 5,887 206 8092416 § 0.9883

The operational currency of the units is the Australian Dollar.

12
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As of August 31, 2023, all issued units were held by four unitholders, who hold 70.80%, 21.45%, 7.16% and 0.59% of the
interest in the net assets, respectively.

As of August 31, 2022, all issued units were held by five unitholders, who hold 68.17%, 21.13%, 9.47%, 0.88% and
0.35% of the interest in the net assats, respectively,

Unitholders may transfer their holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo fransfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until
enterad into the Series Trust's register of unitholders,

Each unitholdar may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or
a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be
submitted in either the relevant currency or in units. If such nolice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such
unitholder recorded in the register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discrelion may apply a minimum repurchase
requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class is paid in cash bul may be
made in kind (or parially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee o the extent that the Trustee, in
consullation with the Manager, determinegs il to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made
by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholder on the same day is made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as
a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such
unithaolder. Mo such repurchase proceads will bear interest prior 1o actual distribution,

During the year ended August 31, 2023, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:
Procesds from units  Proceeds from units

issued repurchased
EE V-1 (920,537 )

Classes of units
ALID Class Units 5

During the year ended August 31, 2022, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

Procesds from units  Proceeds from units
Classes of units issued repurchased
ALID Class Units - 1,378,701 5 (2.069,216)

During the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, the number of units issued, repurchased and oulstanding
were as follows:

At At
Classes of units August 31, 2022 Units issued Units repurchased August 31, 2023
ALID Class Units B,992 416 783,000 (919.024) 8,856,392

At AL
Classes of units August 31, 2021 Units issued Units repurchased August 31, 2022
AUD Class Units 10,605,038 1,383,002 (2,995,624) 8992418

The issue and repurchase of unils and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any circumstances
where the calculation of the Mel Assel Value per unit is suspended, The Trustee will inform unitholder of such
a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannaot
be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the
casa may be.
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concaming the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on hislorical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulling accounting
eslimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quotad in active markets, such as over-lhe-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation technigues (for example, models) are used
to determine fair values, they are validated and perodically reviewed by the Manager.

3. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's activities expose it o a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carmed out by the Manager under policies
approved by the Trustes,

The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the varous types of risks to which it is exposed; these
methods are explained below,

(A) Market Risk

(1) Currency Risk

Securiies held by the Series Trust are denominated in Australian Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series
Trust has little currency risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign
currency rates.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the rsk that prices of fixed income securifies generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interes! rates increase, Prices of longer larm secunities generally change more in response o interest
rate changes than prices of shorer term securities, The Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term interest
rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Seres Trust management. When interest rates
fluctuate, the duration of the security may ba used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the dabt
security. The bigger the security’s duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given
movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

The following tables analyze the Series Trust's interest rate risk exposure. It includes the Series Trust's assets and
liahilities at fair value, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.
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For the Year Ended August 31, 2023

(Expressed in Ausfralian Dollars)

Non-interest
At August 31, 2023 Up to 1 year 1 - 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
Assets
Financial assels al fair value through profit or
loss § 6359853 § 224718 % - & - ] 8,607,771
Cash and cash equivalens 369,096 - - = 369,006
Recaivables for:
Interast - - - 42,761 42 761
Expense reimbursement - - - 26,693 26,693
Sacurities sold - - - a9 a9
Other assets - - - o7,208 97,298
Total Assets § GT2EO49 5§ 2247048 § - & 166761 & 9,143,628
Non-interest
At August 31, 2023 Up to 1 year 1-5yoars Over 5 years bearing Total
Liabilities
Payables for:
Printing fees $ - 3 - 5 - § 37,454 5 A7 454
Professional fees - - - 29,604 £9.604
Investment managemeant fees - - - 15679 15,679
Units repurchased = = - 12,735 12,735
Distribution fees - - - 10,492 10,492
Transfer agent fees - - - 4,436 4,436
Fee agent feas - - - 1,844 1.844
Custody feas - - - 1,077 1,077
Agent mermber company fees - - - 154 154
Manages support servica provider fees - - - T8 78
Liabilities {excluding net assals
attributable to the holder of units) - - - 113,553 113,553
Total interest and sensitivity gap § GTIES43 § 2247518 § - 5 53,208 § 59,030,075
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(Expressed in Australian baﬂars}

Non-interast

At August 31, 2022 Up to 1 year 1-5 years Ower 5 years bearing Total

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss § 28089905 § 5638336 & - % - 5 8,448,241

Cash and cash equivalents 603,517 - - - 803,517

Receivables for:
Units issued - - - 151,161 151,181
|terest = - - 40,157 40,157
Expense reimburserment - - - 15,636 15,636

Other assels - = - B4, 283 B4, 283
Total Assets § 3413422 § 5638336 § - 3 281,237 ] 9,342,995

Haon-interast

At August 31, 2022 Up to 1 year 1-5years Ower 5 years bearing Total

Liabilities

Payables for:
Securities purchased 5 - 8 - & - § 302,364 5 382,354
Professional feas - - - 36,781 36,781
Printing fees - - - 19,422 19,422
Distribution fees - = - 5952 5,952
Custody feas - - - 2,402 2402
Transfer agent fees - - - 1,850 1.950
Fee agent fees - - - 1,780 1,780
Investment managemeant feas - - - 1,751 1,751
Administraior fees - - - 1,680 1,680
Units repurchased - = - 1,363 1,383
Manager suppon service pravider fees - - - 165 185
Agent member company fees - - - 149 148

Liabilities (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) - - - 455 789 455 788

Total interest and sensitivity gap § 3413422 § 5638336 § i (164,552} § 8,887,208

Al August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other
variables remaining constant, the increase or decraase in nat assaets attributable to the holder of units from oparations for
the period would amount to approximately 341,193 and $39,224, respectively assuming that the cash position will be
held for one year. This is caused mostly by the changes in market values of debt securities.

(lii) Market Price Risk

The market price of securities owned by the Series Trust may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably,
Securities may decline in value due to factars affecting securities markats generally or paricular industries represented in
the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which are not specifically
refated to a parlicular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic condiions, supply and demand for
particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outlook for corporate eamings. changes in interest or
currency rates or adverse investor sentmenl, They may also decline due to factors which affect
a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions
within an industry, During a general downtum in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value
simultanegusly. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

The tables below summarize the concentration in market price risk as at August 31, 2023

Industry Name Fair Value % of Het Assets
Investment in debt securities
Auto Manufacturers 3 1,406,708 15.6%
Banks 6,505,582 TE.4%
Govermnment 295,471 3.3%
Total investment in debt securities $ 8,607,771 95.3%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss $ 8,607,771 95.3%
Country Name Fair Valua % of Net Assats
Investment in debt securities
Ausiralia L3 4,917,528 54.4%
Canada 902,587 10.0%
Japan 500,620 55%
Multi-Natianal 285,471 3.3%
Switzerland 324 677 3.8%
United States 1,666,818 18.5%
Total investment in debt securities $ 8,607,771 95.3%
5 8,607,771 85.3%

The tables below summarize the concentration in market price sk as at August 31, 2022

Industry Name Fair Value % of Net Assels
Investment in debt securities

Auto Manufacturers 3 1,085,756 12.4%
Banks 7,030,402 79.1%
Government 322,083 3.68%
Total inwvestment in debt securities 3 8,448,241 95.1%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 8,448 241 95.1%
Country Name Fair Value s of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities

Ausgiralia 5 2,464,595 27.8%
Canada 1,145,539 12.9%
France 200,481 2.3%
Germany 309,489 3.5%
Japan 300,947 3.4%
Multi-National 322,083 3.6%
Spain 400,728 4.5%
United Kingdom 1,630,457 18.3%
United States 1,673,042 18.8%
Total investment in debt securities $ 8,448,241 95.1%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss § 8,448,341 95.1%

As the Series Trust's investments are carried al fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statement of
Comprahensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the total net assets and tofal comprehensive
income.

An increase in market pricas of the investments in debt securities of 1% at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, would,
all else being equal, increase net assets attributable to the holder of units by $86,078 and 584,482, respectively.
A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

(B) Credit Risk
The Series Trust takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when they fall due.,

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of the
Series Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the issuer
and the terms of the obligation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023
(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

All transactions in listed secwrifies are setfled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considerad minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once Ihe broker has received payment. Payment s made
on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either parly fails to meet their
obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-gaing basis,

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022 is the camying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the
Series Trust. None of these assels are impaired or past due,

At August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022 the clearing and depository operations for the Series Trust's security
transactions are mainly concentrated with the Custodian, with a Fitch rating of A+. At August 31, 2023 and August 31,
2022, substantially all cash and cash equivalents and investmeants are placed in custody with the Custodian,

The Series Trust's policy o manage this risk is to invest in debt securities that have an investment grade
by a well-known rating agency, Moody's. The Series Trust may also invest in unrated assets where a rating is assigned
by the investmeant advisor using an approach that is consistent with the approach used by that rating agency.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Seres Trust's debt portfolio at August 31, 2023 as a percentage
of net assets.

Rating" % of Net Assets

Aaa 3.3%

Aad 28.3%

Al A%

A2 10.5%

A3 19.1%
95.3%

*Security ratings, if any, are oblained from Moody's/S&P's Investor Service.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Series Trust's daebt portiolio at August 31, 2022 as a percentage
of net assets.

Rating* % of Net Asgets

Aga J.6%
Aad 12.7%
Al 24.0%
AZ 11.2%
A3 27 6%
Baal 6.8%
Baa? 0.2%

95.1%

*Security ratings. if any, are oblained from Moody's/S&P's Investor Service.

(C) Liquidity Risk

Ligquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell, The Seres Trust's investments in illiquid
securities may reduce the returmns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiguid securities
at an advantagecus time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust's principal investment strategies involve non-
developed country securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market andfor credit risk, the Series Trust will tend
o have the greatest exposure o liquidity risk.

The lables below analyze the Series Trusl's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

At August 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 -3 months Total
Payables for;
Printing feas AT 454 -~ 3T 454
Professicnal fees 29 604 - 28,604
Investment management fees 15,679 - 156789
Units repurchased 12,735 - 12,735
Distribution fees 10,4592 - 10,492
Transfer agent fees 4436 - 4436
Fee agent fees 1,844 = 1,844
Custady fees 1,077 - 1,077
Agent member company fees 154 - 154
Manager support service provider fees 78 = 78
Contractual cash out flows % 113,553 5 - % 113,553
At August 31, 2022 Less than 1 manth 1 -3 months Total
Payables for:
Securities purchased 5 382364 % - 5 382,364
Professional fees 36,781 - 36,781
Printing feas 19422 - 19422
Distrbution fees 5,952 - 5,852
Custody fees 2402 - 2.402
Transfer agent fees 1,850 - 1,950
Fee agent fees 1,780 - 1,780
Investment management fees 1.751 - 1,751
Administrator fees 1.680 - 1,690
Units repurchased 1.383 - 1,383
Manager support service provider fees 165 - 165
Agent member company fees 149 - 149
Contractual cash out flows ] 455,789 % - ] 455, TB9

Units are repurchased on demand at the holder's option. However, the Trustes does not envision that this contractual
malurity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically retain tham
for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an on-gaing basis,
Liquidity risk is managed by invesling ne more than 15% of the Met Asset Value in illiquid assets.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supporied by certain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures. Prospective investors should be
aware that no risk management system is fail-safe, and no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed by the
Manager (e.g., stop-win, stop-loss, sharpe ratios, loss limits, value-at-risk or any cther methodology now known or later
developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or otherwise limit substantial losses. Mo assurance can be given that
the risk management systems and techniques or pricing models will accurately predict future trading patterns or the
manner in which investments are priced in financial markets in the future.

(E) Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Series Truslt is represented by the net assels attributable 1o the hoelder of units, The amount of net
assels attributable to the helder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust is subject to daily
subscriptions and repurchases al the discretion of the unitholder, The Series Trust's objective when managing capital is
to safequard the Series Trust's ability to conlinue as a going concemn in order to provide returns for the unitholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment
aclivities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital struclure, the Series Trust's policy is to perform the
following:

®  Nonitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of

distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.
®  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trusl.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of nel assets alirbulable to the holder of units,
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(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)
5.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Senes Trust's entire holding of securities. The
Custodian or olher banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent, causing the Series
Trust to lose all or a porlion of the funds or securities held by those custodians,

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Cuslodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
carain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit,

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign settliement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve certain
risks [such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United States
investments, At times, setlements in cerlain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
fransactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Manager o carry oul transactions for the account of the Series
Trusl.

If the Manager cannot seffle or is delayed in setlling a purchase of securities, it may miss atfractive investment
epporunities and certain of the Series Trusts assets may be uninvested with no refurm eamed thereon for some year, If
the Manager cannol setlle or is delayved in setlling a sale of securities, the Seres Trust may lose maney if the value of
the security then declines or, if it has conlracted to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could be liable for
any losses incurred,

(D) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which the
Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Seres Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material losses
fo the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the years ended
August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022,

The Seres Trust has not offset any financial assets or liabilities in the Statement of Financial Paesition and did not hold
any derivative assets,

(E) Concentration Risk

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units in the Selected Bonds and
therefore losses incurred by the Selecled Bonds will have a material adverse effect on the Series Trust's overall financial
position,

(F) Risk of investing In Australian Bonds

Exposure o instruments of issuers may involve significant economic and political risks. By investing in Australian Bonds,
the Series Trust will be exposed o the direct or indirect consequences of political, social and economic changeas in
Australia. Political changes may affect the willingness of the Australian issuers to make or provide for timely payments of
their debt obligations. The country's and local economic slatus, as reflected, among other things, in its inflation rate, the
amount of its external debt and its gross domeslic product, will also affect the local issuers’ ability to honor their
obligations.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Bonds
Any return on the Units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Bonds. An investment in
Units does not give a Unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Bonds.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is schedulad for August 29, 2025, the Final Repurchase Day will
be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event ocour,

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies IFRS 13, "Fair value measuremeant’ and utilizes the |ast traded market price for its fair valuation
inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.
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(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variely of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each period end date, Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options,
currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
reference to other instrumenis thal are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the
inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions.
The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant fo the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations
are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and
counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measuremeants,

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

®  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

®  Level 2 inputs are inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

=  Level 3 inpuls are unobservable inpuls for the asset or liability,

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on
the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the
significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurament uses
observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considenng factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under advisement
of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be that market data
that is readily available, regularly distibuted or updated, reliable and verifiable, notl proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively invalved in the relevant market,

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of August 31, 2023 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial asseis held for trading:

{Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Significant Other Significant

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Investments  Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Valua at
Value Through Profit or Loss (Leveal 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)  August 31, 2023
Invesiment in debt securities 5 - & 8607.771 5 - 5 8,607,771
Financial assets, at fair value through

profit or loss g - % 8607771 § - & 8,607.771
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(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

The following is 8 summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of August 31, 2022 in valuing the Seres
Trust's financial assets held for trading:

{Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Significant Other Significant

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Investments  Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss {Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)  August 31, 2022
Investment in debl securities 3 - 3 8448241 S i 8,448 241
Financial assets, at fair value through

profit or loss - - 5 3448241 § - § 8,448,241

During the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instrumeants that trade in markets thal are not considerad to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources suppored by observable inputs are classified within Level 2,
These include over-the-counter dervatives and debt securifies, As Level 2 investments include positions that are not
fraded in aclive markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflact illiquidity and/or
non-transfarability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
As of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, the Series Trust did not hold investments classified as Level 3.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

{i) At August 31, 2023 and Auwgust 31, 2022, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities
(including other assets, receivables for interest, expense reimbursement and units issued and payables for
securities purchased, unils repurchased, printing fees, professional fees, administrator fees, cuslody fees, fee
agent fees, transfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member company fees
and manager suppor Service provider fees) are deemed shori-term financial assels and liabilities whose
carrying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer o Nole 2 for a description of
the valuation lechnigues.

(i} Net assets attributable to the holder of units. The Senes Trust repurchases and issues the units at the amount
equal to the proportionate share of net assets of the Series Trust at the lime of repurchase, calculated on
a basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the holder of units approximates their fair value.

6. NET GAIN/[LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

.ﬂgﬂust 31, 2023 AliE_ust 31, 2022
et gainf{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
fhrough profit and loss consist of the following:
Net realized (loss) on investments in debt secunties 3 {3.357) -] {24,345)
Met realized (loss) on investments in forward contracts (204} {142)
Taotal net realized (loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value theough profit of loss -] (3,568) S (24 487
Mevement in net unrealized appreciation/{depreciation) on
investments in debt securities 5 96,329 s (210,253}

7. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7.1 Fees and Expenses

{A) Administrator Fees

The Adminisirator receives an annual fee of 0.07% on the first USE500 millien of net assets, 0.06% on the next USE500
million of the net assets and 0.05% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The
feas eamed by the Administrator during the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, and outstanding fees
payable to the Administrator as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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For the Year Ended August 31, 2023

(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian will receive a fee of 0.03% per annum of the Met Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each
valuation day, payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the years ended August 31, 2023
and August 31, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

{C) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of net assets and a $10 fee per ransaction. The fees earmed by the
Transfer Agent during the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the
Transfer Agent as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprahensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31,
2022, and outstanding fees payable as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Distribution Fees

The Distributors receive a fee of up to and including 0.30% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated
as al each valuation day multiplied by the fraction of unils of such class for which the Distributors are unitholders divided
by the tolal number of units issued in respect of such class of units, and payable monthly in arrears (the “Distribution
Fees™).

The Distribution Fees may be adjusted and notified by the investment Manager to the Administrator on a monthly basis in
accordance with the Distribution and Repurchase Agreement and are linked to the 2-year Australian Government Bond
Yields as shown in table below.

2-vear Australian Government Bond Yields Dis:,:i::::::ﬂ:“s
(per annum of the Net Asset Value)
Less than or equal to 0.50%% 0.05%
Above 0.50% and less than or equal to 0.75% 0.10%,
Above 0.75% and less than or equal o 1.00% 0.15%
Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% 0.20%
Above 1.25% 0.30%

The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust.
The fees eamed by the Distributors during the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, and outstanding fees
payable to the Distributors as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statemeant of Financial Position, respectively.

7.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contral the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational decisions, The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent Mamber
Company are all related parties to the Seres Trust,

There were no other transactions with relaled parties other than those in the normal course of business.
(A) Trustes Fees

The Trustea receives a fixed annual fee of USE10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of the Operational
Costs Fee.
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assels Value (the "Operational Costs Fees®), accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day, The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Adminisirator, on behalf of the Trustee
out of the assets of the Seres Trust, The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the years ended August 31, 2023 and
August 31, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively,

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expanses, which are, in the
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and
Trustee Fees (the "Ordinary Costs").

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the capped expenses, extraordinary
expenses, broker expenses or miscellaneocus expenses. Capped expenses will be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of
the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust up to and including the TER Cap, and any Capped Expenses above the
TER Cap will be borme by the Investment Manager. Extraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and Miscellaneous
Expenses fall oulside of the TER Cap and shall be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets
of the Series Trust,

To the extent that the Operational Cosls Fees do nol cover the Ordinary Cosls, the Fee Agent will be liable for any
outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs will be retained by the Fee Agent
as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees will be payable guarterly in arrears in the amount accrued from and excluding, for the first
accrued period only, the initial Closing Day, and for all other accrued periods, the last day of each calendar quarter, each
being a "Fee Calculation Day”, to and including, for all but the last accrual period, the next Fee Calculation Day, and for
the last accrual period, the Final Repurchase Day or if such day is not also a Valuation Day then the immediately
preceding Valuation Day (the "Final Valuation Day”™).

For the avoidance of doubt, should the Final Valuation Day not also be a Fee Calculation Day, the last accrual perod
shall end on the Final Yaluation Day,

(C) Manager Fees
The Manager receives out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of LUS$5,000 per annum payable monthly in
arrears.

(D) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives a fee of up to and including 0.30% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The Investment Manager Fees will be paid by the
Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust.

The Investment Management Fees may be adjusted and notified by the Investment Manager to the Administrator on
a monthly basis in accordance with the Investment Management Agreement and are linked to the 2-vear Australian
Government Bond Yields as shown in table below.

. i Investment Management Fees
2-year Australian Government Bond Yields Percentage
(per annum of the Net Asset Value)
Less than or equal to 0.50% (.05%
Above 0.50% and less than or equal to 0.75% 0.10%
Above 0.75% and less than or equal o 1.00% 0.15%
Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% 0.20%
Above 1.25% 0.30%
24
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2023

(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

The fees earned by the Investment Manager during the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, and
outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively.

(E) Manager Support Service Provider Feas

The Manager Support Service Provider Fees receives an annual fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued
on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears, The Manager Support Service Provider Fees
are paid by the Administrator, on behall of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Seres Trust. The fees eamed by the
Manager Support Service Provider Fees during the years ended August 21, 2023 and August 31, 2022, and outstanding
feas payable to the Manager Support Servica Provider Fees as of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have baan
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively,

(F} Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company receives a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at
each valuation day and payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator,
on behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Agent Member Company during
the years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as
of August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Staterment of Financial Position, respectively.

8. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Seres Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During the
years ended August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through Movember 30, 2023, the date on which these
financial statements wera available to be issued. Effective September 1, 2023 through November 30, 2023, there were

subscriptions of $30,312 and repurchases of 3587 608, There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the
Series Trust.
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8,687,568 842,172,842
174,840 16,948,990
8,512,728 825,223,852
8,227,388
1.0347 100
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1,696,763,986
9,579,491

13 75,944,366
74,151,668,804
1,409,580,626
23 152,329,776,470
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2022 2021
usd usd
14,396 2,042 1,541 219
14,396 2,042 1,541 219
14,396 2,042 1,541 219
205,000 29,075 210,000 29,784
58 8 4 1
219,454 31,125 211,545 30,003
(112,703) (15,985) (111,758) (15,851)
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
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2022 12 31

2022 2021

usD usD
9 1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577
10 205,864 29,198 210,863 29,907
2,189,897 310,593 1,970,551 279,483
10 336,526 47,729 223,931 31,760
336,526 47,729 223,931 31,760
11 735,000 104,245 735,000 104,245
1,118,371 158,619 1,011,620 143,478
1,853,371 262,864 1,746,620 247,723
2,189,897 310,593 1,970,551 279,483

2023 15
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2022 12 31
usD uSsD usD
2022
735,000 104,245 1,011,620 143,478 1,746,620 247,723
106,751 15,140 106,751 15,140
12 31 735,000 104,245 1,118,371 158,619 1,853,371 262,864
2021
735,000 104,245 911,833 129,325 1,646,833 233,570
99,787 14,153 99,787 14,153

12 31 735,000 104,245 1,011,620 143,478 1,746,620 247,723
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

UsD UsD
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
4 (14,396) (2,042) (1,541) (219)
92,355 13,099 98,246 13,934
4,999 709 10,107 1,433
4,999 709 10,107 1,433
112,595 15,969 5,998 851
112,595 15,969 5,998 851
4 14,39 2,042 1,541 219
224,345 31,819 115,892 16,437
224,345 31,819 115,892 16,437
9 1,759,688 249,577 1,643,796 233,140
1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577
9 1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577

1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577
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KY1 1104

c/o Maples

Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman

Islands
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2022 2021
14,396 1,541
14,396 1,541
2022 2021

205,000 210,000
205,000 210,000
2022 2021

(50) €h)
(6,478) (5,272)
(106,175) (106, 485)
(112,703) (111,758)

2039 10 10
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2022

2022 2021

1,984,033 1,759,688

1,984,033 1,759,688
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2022 2021
205,864 210,863
205,864 210,863

2022 2021
336,526 223,931
336,526 223,931

2022 2021

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

136/195



12

2022

2022

2021 12 31

2021 12 31

12

137/195

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2021 12 31



13

14

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
336,526 336,526 223,931 223,931
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,071,526 1,071,526 958,931 958,931
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
2022 2021
106,175 106,485
106,175 106,485
12 31
2023 12

138/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15 2022 12 31
2022 12 31
16
2023 19 2023 12
2023 12
17

2023 15

139/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cree™ Suiese Mpugwnent [Cymay Linted
Fagrol stetwranly for the year ewfed’ 37 Owownbar 2005

Statement of Income Tor the year ended 31 December 2022

uso ﬁ?“r 2022 2021
i = - S TR e

- af wiich inferas! incoma from instrumenie at

amartiead cost 14,306 1,54
Total inkerest incomes 4 14,356 1.541
Senieefesincome B 205000 210,000
e resamioes et s 4
Total ravenues 219,454 211,645
General, adminstraive and other cperabing expenses | & (12703 {411,768
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 106,751 94,787
Frofit befora tax 106,751 99,787
incoma tax expenes 7T et R T R,
Profit after ot 106,751 949,787

The accompanying rotes fonm an integral part of these finandcal stalements.
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Croci Susie Marapement {Cmeman) Limied
Firanoal stidecnsnds &y S year ercied 37 Discember 2077

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

= Raforce 2022 2021
Assals

Cash and due from banks g 1,584,023 1,759,668

Other assets 10 005,864 210,853

Total assels 2,189,897 1,870,551

Liabilities

Oither liabies 10 336,526 023,631

Total liabilities 336,526 223,931

Shareholders’ equity |
Share capital 1 735,000 735,000

Retained eamings LIB3TT 1011620

Total shareholders’ equity == 1,853,371 1,746,620

Total liabilities and shareholdars” equity 2,189,897 1,870,551

Bporoved and authorsed for issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2003

1
¥
)} Derector
)
)

popavoine

5

nw““,nm o non) Limited
Credit SUIBYE

The accomparying nates form an integral part of these financial statements.
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S Suisse Managersnt (Cnara) Laotsf
Fargeglof whalimard's S W oo enced §1 Cecernbar 2007

Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

Shane caplal Retamned Toral
uso eamings
R R e e e
BalanceatiJanuary 735000 1,011,620  1,746620
Frolit for the year =~ 105751 108751
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,371
2021
Balanceatilanwary 735000 911,833 1648833
Profit for theyeas " T gy gaet
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,011,620 1,748,620

The ascomaaniing noles fam an integral part of thess finandal slatermants.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

usD ‘m 2022 2021
Cash flows from operaling aclvities

Prefit belone tax b the pemed 106,751 69,787
Adiustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

generated from operating activities

Non-cash items ncluded in nel profit before tax

and ather adjusiments:

[Interast income A e (4,386 (1547
Cash generated from operating activibes belore

changes in opaerating asseis and liabilities 92,365 98,248
Net decrease in operaling assels:

CHher assets ST T T4 Ty
et decrease in operating assets 4,995 10,107
Netincrease In operating Rebilitles:
(hher kacilties 110 508 5,008
Hatincresss inoperating Rabiles: . . 112695 6998
Interest income meceived 4 14,296 1,541
MNet cash generated from operating activity 224,345 115,882
Mel increase in cash and eash equivalents 224 348 115,862
Cach and cash aquivalanis ai the beginning of year 9 1,758,688 1 543, 706
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of year 1,964,033 1,759,688
Cash ard dua from banks [ 1,584,033 L, 755,638
Cash and cash equivalenits al the end of yeor 1,984,033 1,759,688

The accomeanying notes tormn an integral part of these linancial stedemants,
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Motes to the financial statements
1.  Principal activities

Credit Sumze Maragement (Cammy) Lirded (Ihe “Compam) s incarporated In the Caenan [sands
with Emited leblfty, The Company's pincipal activites are the crsation of rusis and the administration
and managerment of assels n sk, The Company's registered office & ofo Maples Corporale
Sandces Lirided, R0, Box 308 |, Upland House, Gand Cagman 1Y 1-1 104, Cayrran [sands,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(2} Statement of compliance

These fnancil slalemenls heve been prepared in accordance with el appicable Infemalional
Financia! Repoding Standards (FRSs", which collscibe ferm incudes al applicable indvidual
Intemelional Finenciel Repeding Standards, Infermetionsl Accounling Standards (14557} and
Interpratations msued by Inlemational Accounling Standards Scard ("lASET). A summary of the
siqnificant accounting palices adopted by the Company is sef out below.

{b) Basis of preparaticn of the financial stalements
Tiee measurerment basis ussd in the preparation of the financal slalemenls is the historical cost basis,

The peeparation of financial staterments in conformify with IFRSs requires maragement 10 ke
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect Yhe application of poicles and reported amounts
of assets, liabiities, income and expenses. The estimates and assockyied assumctions are based on
historca' experience and varous other factors that ame beleved o be reasonzblz wider the
clrzumstances, the resyks of which tom the basls of making the judgements about camying valies of
assets and Fabiliies thal are nol readily apoarent from olher sources. Aclual resulls mey differ from
these eshmates.

The astmates and undarlying assumptions am redewed on an ongoing basiz, Revisions to acoounting
eslimates ars recognized in the periad in which the estimale Is revised  the revision affects only that
pericd, or in the perod of the revision and fulure periods | the mewvislon afects both currant and future
padfods.

Geing Concam

On 18 March 2023, Credt Suisge Group AG and UBS Group AG anferad mio an agresmant and
clan of menger ("the merger”), which was coenplated on 12 Jure 2003, From 12 June 2023, the
Company = 2 contolicalad subsidiany of LIBS Group AG, and as such the fiture cpartions and
financial peromanze of the Company may be imgacted as a resut of the merger and the impact s
yet to be detenmined. This matter indicates thal a material unceriainty exdsts thad may cast significant
dewbt on the Company's ablity 1o continue as 2 going concem. The Directors have considersd the
Tubure tquidity and cash fiows of the Company in the coming twelwe months from 31 Decamber 2022
{"lhe next twelve months®) and concluded that the Company Is expected o have sufficlent woring
capilal to mee! ils lnancal obligelions as end when they fal due o conlinue aperating the Company
during the nexd twabe months. Accordingly, the Direclors consider thal il is appropatate to stil prepare
the 9002 francal slalemenls on a going concem basis,
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2. Significant Acecunting Pelicles (cominuad)
(g} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash al bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
licasd irrrestments thel ane readly comeertible into known amownts of cash and which are subjecl ta an
insignificant risk of changes in walue, having been within thres months of metunty 8l acgquisilion,

{d) Foreign currency

Thee Company's Tenclional and presentalicn curency is Uniled States Ceollers (USDY). Foneign
currency transacions during the year are tramsiated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling ol
the tensadlion dates. Monetary assals and fedliies denominated in forelgn currencies are irenglaled
into USD &l the foreign evchange mies wing at the end of the reporting perioed. Exchenge gaing and

losses are recogsed in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assats and labllites thal ars measured in terms of historical cost in a forslgn currency
are transiated oo USE ushyg the fomeign ecchange rates rling at the transaction dates. Nore
manataty assets and ablffes denominated in forsign curmancies that are slated ol fair value are
translated using the fore'gn exchange rates nding at the dates the falr value was determined. Forcign
currency differences adsing on retranslation are recogrised in profil or loss.

{e) Other assebs

(ther assets are initisly recognised a2l far walue and frecealor siated ot ameorised cost less
Expecied Crocit Loss (‘ECLT) (refer to Mote o), emcapt where the recebalios are interost-froe
Inans made to related parbes without any fxed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immadenid, In such cases, the recsivabies are stated of cost kess Inpainment for bed and doubiiul
detls.

(f) Provisions and contingent liabililies

Proviskens are recogrised for labitiss of uncertain fiming or amount when the Company has a lagal
or consbroctive obligation arsing a5 a result of & past event, it is probable that an autiow of econemic
benefis wil be reguired to setile the chligabion and a refiable estimate cash te mada. Whars Lhe ime
valse of money s mealedal, provisiors ane staled at the presend value of the axpenditure axpecied bo
setthe the obigaton.

Wynane it is not probable that an cutflow of economic benalits wil be requiced, or the amourt cannol
ba astmaled refiably the obigabion is disciasad as a conbngent fabiky, unlaze the probabilty ol
outfiow of aconomic benafits ks remote. Possitie chlizations, whose axstence wil anly be confirmed
by tha occurence o non-ocsurrense of one or mome future evenls are also disclossd as contrgent
fatEties unless the probabiity of sutflow of economic berefss is remade.

(g} Impairment

Tre camying amourt of the Company's asseis Is reviewed at the end of each reporting peded to
defermina whether thera is any ofjective evidence of impaiment. If any such objective evidence
edsts, the assels reccwerabla amount le eslirmaled at the end of each reporiing pedod. An
imgaiement 055 Is recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset exceeds Hs recoverable
amount. Impaiment ksses ane recognised in the profl o kess.

Undar FRS €, tha impairmant requissments apply primarily 1o (nancal assets measured at amorised
cast. Tha impairment requirerents are based on a forward=-seiing expecled audit loss model by
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (conlinuad)
(g} Impairment (continued)

mcorporating reascnable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions available &l the
reporting date. This requires considerabls judgement cver how changes In eceromic faclors affect
ECLs, which s determined on & probabiiy-waichted basis,

(h} Revenue recognition

Provided that & is protable that the sconomic berefits will figw fo the Compary and the revenus and
oomsts, if applcable, can ba resscosd reliably, senice fee incoma (s recognized in profit or lass when
the inwestmant managemant service is provided,

(i} Expenses
All expenses are recogrisad in predil and loss on an accnual basis.
(jy Relatad partias

For the purposes of these linancil statements, & pary i3 considarsd to be méted o the Company if:
{a} A persen, or & clese member of Ihal person’s famiy, & related to the Comeany B that person;
M has contral or joird contrel over the Compary;
(i} has sgniicant influence gwer the Company; or
(i} iz 3 membar of tha key management personnel of fhe Company or the Company's
parsnt.

[B)  An entity is related to the Company f any of the ialowing condiions apples;

@)  The eniily and the Company are membesz of the same group [which means that sach
paront, subsdiary and lellow subsidary i relaled bo fhe others).

i} One enfity @5 an associsle or joint venture of ihe other endity (or an =ssocate or jon
veniure of a member of & group of which the olher entity s a meambar),

i) Bolh enlilies sk joint ventures of the sme hicd party,

{7y One enbly is & joird venture of & thid pary and the other entity is an assocate of the
Ihird party:

0]  The enliy s a post-employmant benafit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
Company or an entity rafaled to the Caomgany,

0d)  The entily s contralled or jolnlly contreled by & person identitied in (a).

0dl) A parson dentified in (2100 has significant influsnce over the ently or i a member of the
kery management personnel of the entity {or of & parent of the enlity).

Chse membars of the family of 2 person ame lhose family members whe may be spaciad o
nfluenca, or be influenced by, that person in thelr daalings with the antity,

ik} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company has ncl adopled any new slandards or amendments having material impact on the
tinancil positon, result of opemtions or cash fiows in the cwrent year,
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3.  Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a oumber of amendmenis lo IFRSs (et are fiel effeciive for the cumrerd
accourding period of the Cormpany. The adophion of thesa amendments had no materal impact to the
Company's fnandal pesition, et of operations or cash flows,

The Comparty has nat agalied oyt standard or inferpratation that i& not yet effective for the
cument acoounting period (Mote 15).

4. Total Interest Income

uso 2083 2021
Total interest income

Inerestincommoncashand dus frombarks. 14883 1541
Total interest income 14,396 1,641

All the sbose inberest income on nstruments are sl amodised cosl.
5. Service Fee Income

The princical acthiiies of the Company are the creation of frums ang the adminlstraticn and
management of assels in trusts,

Revenue reprsents swestment management fee income eamed [rom felow subsidigny as lolows:

USD 2022 2021
Jotsl servicefesinooma L liii...

Service fee income B ) GOR000 210,000
Toial service fee mcome 205,000 210,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

UsD 2022 2021
Ganeral administrative and olher operating expenses = ___
Lot SR S DO e e e | P ()
Ausditor remuneration {B.4T3) (5,279

Total general adminisirative and other operating expenses _ (112.703) __ (111.758)
AL of the above expenditures ane payathe to the Comgany's immediate helding company and ihe
immediate ho'ding cempany setties such cxpendiiures en behalt of the Company.

7. Taxation
Thers ara no taces on income or geins in the Cayman Iglands and the Company has recelved an
underaking from the Govemar in Coundl of the Cayrran lelands aeameting B from all loeal ncome,

prediis and capital taoes untll 10 October 2038, Accordingly, no provdsion for income taxes is inciuded
in these financial statemsnts,

11
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8  Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sporsmonad unconsokdated struciurad endrias

The Company conskders Hself the spansar of a strectured entity when ekher tis name appears in the
narme of the strectured entity o in products issuad by i o thers is & general axpeciation from The
marked that the Company is essociated with the structured entity or the Company was involved in tho
design ér 561 up of tha stnaclured enlity and hias & foim of imvohement with the siruciuned entity.

The Beslow unconsolideled struciuned entities are spansonsd by the Cernpany whane a fred annoal
managemant fea of USD 5,000 (20017: USD 5.000) is received bul no inflanest s he'd by the
Comgpany as at 31 Decarmbar D000

R ot L SO I i v o i A A e
Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alcha Fund (For Qualried Insttutional bwestors Only)

_________________________________________________ il i

Ghonal REIT Triple Preanium Fund (For Cualifed Insifutionsl investars Only)

LS Hign Die Equity Premium Fund (For Quaified institutional Investers Only)
U5 Smat Cap Enuity Premium Fund (For OuaBied Institutional Investars Or

U3 Prefermed REIT Income Fund (For Quaiied Institulional Imseslors Only)

Japan Equily Frarium Fund (Foe Quadiied Inslitlonal imestors Only)

s, il o o . i e T A R - e e e, O

NE/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Ouslitied Instilulional ivestors Crl)

________________________________ e i, e i, e i

Diwa Srazlian Real Sond Fund (For Quattied Instifulional mestors Oniy)_
]

MNissay Jagan Equily Acive Fund (For Gunifed Insitional vesios Gy}~~~ "~

AMF Aurlrals REIT Fund (For Oualified Institutional irvestors Onbe)

US Municipal Bond Fund_~ -
Toko Marine CAT Sond Fond

12
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8  Unconsalidaled Structured Entities (continued)

58I Pictet Asia Hi-Tech Vanturs F und

ALID Short Temm Band Fund

'ﬂ'rm' i 'rF. Car 's':.%h}g.{ Eu'-s.'d """"""""""""""""""""""

HOLT Euro Eqy 1}' Fromiem Fund I:Far w!ml m-.ihr.lmn, Irrecshons ﬂdr}'
*The funds were ferrinated during P0ED,

The Compary has ~ot prosided Enancial er othar supzort to unconsofdated structurad entiies that it
was nol contraciually required 1o peovide,

The Comgany does el currenlly hewe e indention o predde Toancal or other support o
unconscidater sinucted enfilies that it & nol confractually recpaned bo piovida.

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash aqunalants compra:

USD 2022 2021
Cash and due frorm banks

Coshandds frombanks = . _ .. %6403 17500663
Total cash and due from banks 1,984,033 1,759,688

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 2022 2021
Other asssts

Irdeses! and leos recehmbie 5,864 210,853
Total other assats 205,864 210,863
s 2022 ]
Other liabilities

Inbsrest and fees payahle 236,509 PEEE-CT]
Tetal ather liabilitiss 336,526 223.931

18
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11. Share Capital
(@) Authorised and lssued share capital

2022 2021
Mo. of uso Ne. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ondinary shares of USD | each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000 1,000,000

lssuad and fully paid up: _

Orcheasy shares TIE000 VI5H00  TASO00 ¥3B.000
Tia hokisss of erdinary shares am entillad to meaive dhidends as deciared from fime to e and are
enfitied to one vote per shase at ceneral meetings of the Campany, Al ordinary shanes rank equaly
with regard to the Company's residual aseets,

{b) Capital management

Tha Company's primary ebjecties when managing capital ars to safequard the Compary's ability 1o
conlinus as a going concern &0 that it can continue to provide refums fo sharshoiders, by pricing
sandcas commansuaiely with the leval of risk and by securng access fo finance at 2 reasonabie
cast. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sourges of additional capilel and
policies Tor distioution of socess capital may also be affecled by the group's cepétal management
oijectves. The Comparry defines “capital’ a5 ncluding al companents of equity.

The Company's capilal structure is mgulady revawed and managed with dus regard o the capisl
ranggenenl paclices of the group lo which the Company belongs, Adjustments am mada 1o fha
capital slruciure in light of changes in economic condiions alfecting the Company or the group, to
the exdent that thess do nol conlict wilh the disctors’ frhuciasy duties tovards e Comparst

The Company was not subject to extemally impogsed capiial requirerrents in the current perid,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure fo credit, iquidty, nteres! mals and foreign clamency risks arsas n tha normal course of the
Company's businass, Thess risks are managed by the Company's finandal management podicies and
practioes described belboe,

(@) Credt sk

The Comprny's cradil 4% is prirarily attibutable o amoends dee {rom group companies and cach at
bank, Credil nsh = defined as rsk that cne party te a financial nstrument will cause a financlal loss b
anpthar party by failing 1o dischage an obigation, Managament regulady menftors its risk enposum to
ersure thal ite credit risk s ept 1o 2 minimal feved The madimom scposuss 10 cradit sk is
represanied by the camying amount of each Sinancial assat in the statement of financial position afier
deducting any (mpairnent alowanse,
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12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Yalues (continued)

() Liguicity risk

The Company's policy is to regulady monitor its Bguidly requirermenls o salisfy i1s contmchuel and
reasonably foresecable obfigalions as they lal due,

At 31 Decamber 2020 and 2001, all of the Company's linancal kalilithas, whizh inziudes all crediters
and accruas, are on demand or undated and are expecisd w be sotled batween thrze fo beehes
months,

fo) interast rate risk

The Company s ssposed to inlenest rafe sk only 1o the extent that it sams bank nierest on cash
and deposits. At 31 December 2022 and S0, a change In Interest rates would have no direct
materal effact on the carmying vale of the recognised assets or labiftas of the Comeany.

(&} Forelan eurrency risk

The Cempany i exposed b foresgn cumency rigk pramarily through certain transactions which gese risa
o payables thal are dacomiraled in Hang Keag dallars (PHED).

Az the HRD is pegoed to the USD, tre Company considers thal the nsk of movemenis in exchange
rates between USD and HYD ta be insignificant.

{8) Fair valuas

Tha carrying amounts of the Company's fnancial nstruments carvied af cost or amortised cost are not
matedally differant freem their fair waive as ot 31 December 2022 and 2021,

13.  Material Related Parly Transactions

In gddificon 4o lhe ransecions and befances disclosed skewhers in the financal slalements, the
Cermparny artarad inlo the foliowing maledial related pary ransactions.

(a) Related party balance sheel transactions

31 Decoember 2022 31 Decambar 2021
Farent Fallow Tetal Parent Fatlow Takal
Growp Group
ush Companias Compankes
Assals
OHher wssets —  OhAGd  o0n a4 —  oeEm g0
Tolal sssets — 105864 205884 — 210,863 210,882
Liakilitims and
Equity
Ottarfablites =~~~ 336506 = = dEsaln adsm - . L
Shine capilal Fan, 000 - T, 00 75,000 - kb, 000
Total labilities and
sharsholders’
equity 1,071,526 - 1,071,526 958,931 - s5Ee31
15
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13.  Matersl Related Party Transactions (continued)

() Related party revenues and expenses

31 December 2022 31 Decamber 2021
Parant Fallow Tokal Farent Fellow Talal
Group Group
uso Companias Coirl pasties
Ravenues
Sersice fes ncome — SCED0D0  DOSDO0 - 210000 210000
Total revenuas - 205,000 205,000 =5 210,000 210,000

{c) Remuneratien of key management personnel

Remuneration of kay managamant perscnmel (USD) 2022 bkl
“Bhor-mm amployes tanalis 108,178 108,488
Total Remuneration of oy management personnal 106,175 108,485

14. Parent and Ultimate Helding Company

At 31 Decombar 20E2, the immediale parent of tha Company is Cradi Suisse (Heng Hong) Limiled,
which is incorporated in Hong Mong and the ulbmale conlrolling paty of the Company & Credit
Swisse Group AG, which & incorpomaled in Swilsetland. Credit Susse Group AG produces financial
slalernents wailebis {or putlic use,

From 12 June 20E3. the ulimate controling pary of the Company s UBS Group AG, which s
incorparabed 18 Switredand upen eompleton of the merger with Credit Suisse Group AG (‘e
merger) mendened in Mot 2(8),

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, Mew Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cerain rew accounting standards, amendments o scoounting standards and interprelations hava
besn published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting pedods ond hive not been
early adoplad by the Compary. Thesa slandands, amendments or intepralations are not axpected to
herer & matedal impact on ihe enlily in the cumen? or Tulurs repodting pereds and on foresasable
fifure tramsactions.

16. Subseguent Events

As sel oul in Mole Xb), on 19 March 2028, Cradit Suizse Group AG and UBS Group AG amtared
Intd an agresment and plan of manger, which was completed on 12 June 2022, From 12 Jure 2083,
the Company Is a consolidated subsidiary of UBS Sroup AG, and as such the fulure operaticns and
financial performence of the Company may be impacted as 3 msult of tre menger and the mpact i
yat {0 b delerrined,

17. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial slalements were approved for issue by the board of directons of the Comgany on 15
June 023,
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Credit Suisse International
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10 Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd
2023 12 500,000 9,034
1987
2023 12 29
180.68
11
2023 12 151 7,427
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of AUD Short Term Bond Fund (the " Series Trust"), a series trust
of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I1l (the"Trust") which comprise the statement of financial
position as at August 31, 2023, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at August 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

188/195



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit-conducted in
accordance with ISAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern.
Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

November 30, 2023
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Independent auditor’'s report

to the board of directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 4
to 16, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSs").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.

Materia Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements, which describes the merger on 12 June 2023 (the
“merger”) between Credit Suisse Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company before the merger) and UBS Group
AG (the ultimate parent of the Company after the merger), which may have an impact on the Company's future
operations and financial performance and the impact is yet to be determined. This matter indicates that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance

with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

193/195



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinterna control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 June 2023
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